
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: November 6, 2020 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 11/10/2020 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

7 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
7a Review of a Memorial Bench/Tree Program Policy – Parks and Recreation Director Jeremy Hall 
will present a proposed policy that establishes a program through which individuals can donate a bench 
or tree to the Town in honor or memory of someone.   The policy, which calls for the donation to cover 
all costs plus a fee, was considered and recommended by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.  In 
the future, this policy could be the framework for similar donations for non-park related properties.  

Recommended Action: Approve the policy. 

9 New Business 
9a Budget and Capital Discussion – The Council is asked to take this opportunity to discuss any 
individual matters that staff should consider as the preparations for the FY 2021/2022 budget continue.  
While the Council will consider a formal Budget Policy in the upcoming weeks, this time could be used to 
provide any initial feedback, goals, or projects Council members believe should be considered. 

Recommended Action: No official Council action necessary – input only.  

9b Hunting on Town Property – As shown in the materials for this meeting, a request was received 
from a resident for permission to hunt on Town property.  Specifically, the individual wishes to hunt 
waterfowl on Town-owned wetland properties on White Birch Road and on Wopowog Road.  The Town 
also owns land between Chestnut Hill and Hog Hill south of CT 16 that is also a likely hunting spot.  There 
is no Town Ordinance on the topic and the only information staff found in the file on the topic is the 
included letter from the then Town Attorney indicating that Town residents do not have a right to hunt 
on Town land simply by virtue of being a resident.  The Town Council has authority to set a policy of 
whether to allow hunting on Town-owned properties.  If Council desires to allow hunting, it would be 
appropriate to adopt an ordinance to that effect so that clear rules and authority would be in place and 
an enforcement tool would exist. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 11/10/2020 
November 6, 2020 
Page 2 

Recommended Action: Determine whether the Town is interested in allowing hunting 
on Town-owned land and provide any guidance as may be appropriate. 

9c Town Participation in RiverCOG Affordable Housing Regional Planning Effort – In 2017, 
Connecticut adopted legislation that required each municipality to develop or update an affordable 
housing plan for the municipality at least every five years.  The Affordable Housing Plan is required to 
specify how the municipality intends to increase the number of affordable housing developments in the 
municipality.    To date, East Hampton has not prepared its plan.  Recently, the Lower Connecticut River 
Valley Council of Governments (RiverCOG) proposed to its members a regional effort lead by RiverCOG 
staff and, likely, funded by grants held by the RiverCOG for regional planning.  The activity would look 
very similar to other regional efforts including the recent Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan work that 
includes a regional element and separate sections for each municipality outlining its specific issues and 
plans.  In discussion with Planning and Zoning Official Jeremy DeCarli, staff believes this will be a good 
way to accomplish this requirement at little or no direct cost to the Town.  Mr. DeCarli would be our 
representative to the effort and would be charged with keeping the community updated and 
encouraging participation in the planning.  He will be at the meeting on Tuesday to discuss the matter 
and answer questions.  Information on  the statute is available at the Connecticut Planning Association 
website at this link:  https://ct.planning.org/knowledge-center/resource-library/connecticut-municipal-
affordable-housing-plans/  

Recommended Action: Authorize Town participation in the regional effort. 

9d Council Representative for Athletic Field RFP Review – As the Council is aware, proposals are 
being solicited for professional services related to the High School Athletic Field project.  In the 
upcoming weeks, review of the responses and potential interviews will take place.  The Council is asked 
whether one of its members desires to be part of the group that reviews the responses, participates in 
the interview and determines a recommendation.  If so, the Council is asked to select a member. 

Recommended Action: Identify a member to help review the RFP responses. 

9e Actions related to the High School Building Committee and High School Project – The High 
School Building Committee has completed its work on the original project and have done so without 
considering or taking action regarding the inclusion of the athletic field project in the scope.  At its last 
meeting, the Committee adopted a motion to close the project and submit the project to the Board of 
Education.  According to the Resolution that established the High School Building Committee, which is 
found in the materials for this meeting, the Committee automatically dissolved and the member terms 
ended “once the assigned project has been turned over to the Board of Education….”  It is the opinion of 
the Bond Council that it is no longer an option to appoint new members to the Building Committee or 
assign those duties to another body, in order to move the athletic field project ahead using funds 
available in the High School project.  In the alternative, a different process will need to be employed.  
The Council may have two options.  First, the original Resolution that authorized the High School 

https://ct.planning.org/knowledge-center/resource-library/connecticut-municipal-affordable-housing-plans/
https://ct.planning.org/knowledge-center/resource-library/connecticut-municipal-affordable-housing-plans/


Town Council - Agenda Information – 11/10/2020 
November 6, 2020 
Page 3 
 

 
 

construction project could be amended to include the athletic field projects specifically.  That Resolution 
would require Board of Finance approval, Town Council Approval and Town Meeting approval.  Similarly, 
a second option would be a completely new Resolution authorizing the project using anticipated excess 
proceeds of approximately $1 million in the High School project.  The same approval process would 
apply as the other option.  The Council is asked to consider these options and determine which they 
wish to pursue.  Based on the Council’s desires, staff will work with Bond Council and the Town Attorney 
to establish the proper actions and process for consideration at the November 24 Regular Meeting or 
some other special meeting as may be necessary. 
 
  Recommended Action: Discuss proceeding with the proposed project. 
 
9f Determination Regarding a Return to Virtual-only Meetings – As the Council is aware, East 
Hampton is at a Red Alert Level under the State alert system.  The alert is based on a significant number 
of new daily cases of COVID-19 being diagnosed through testing signaling increased community spread 
of the virus.  Included in the recommendations from the State at the Red Alert level are suggestions to 
cancel public events, limit community gathering points and cancellation or postponement of indoor 
activities.  Our current daily case rate is similar to the levels we saw early in the pandemic.  The Council 
is asked whether it wishes to return to solely virtual meetings (Zoom) or whether it wishes to maintain 
the hybrid model in use today, which allows the Council to be together but would require most other 
participants to be remote. 
 
  Recommended Action: Determine whether to return to virtual-only meetings. 
 
The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 
 
DC 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 10/27/2020 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, October 27, 2020 

Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson (via Zoom), Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower and Kevin Reich and Town Manager 

David Cox. 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. 

Adoption of Agenda: 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Markham, to adopt the agenda as amended 

moving Item 7a to 4a. Voted (7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to approve the minutes of the Town 

Council Special Meeting of October 8, 2020, and the Regular Meeting of October 13, 2020 as 

written.  Voted (7-0) 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 

Proclamation Declaring November 7, 2020 as Air Line History Day 

Mr. Markham read a proclamation naming November 7, 2020 Air Line History Day in East 

Hampton.  Historical signage for an Eagle Scout project of Boy Scout Troop 57 has been installed 

at Bishop’s Cut and the Cobalt Station area of the Air Line Trail to preserve the history of the 

railroad. 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Ms. Moore, to adopt the proclamation for Air 

Line History Day in East Hampton.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Presentations 

Presentation by Hilary Kenyon of Northeast Aquatics Regarding 2020 Lake Testing Activity 

and the 9 Elements Watershed Plan 

Hilary Kenyon Garovoy of Northeast Aquatic Research presented the 2020 Water Quality Overview 

and Watershed Improvements Progress for Lake Pocotopaug.  The presentation document will be 

included with the minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

Bids & Contracts 

None 

Agenda Item 3a



 

Town Council Regular Meeting  2 10/27/2020 Minutes  

 

Continued Business 

Consideration Regarding Submission of a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Project 

Eligibility Application 

Mr. Cox provided additional information following the last meeting where Council members had 

questions on the application. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to finalize and submit the State of CT 

Department of Public Health Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Project Eligibility application.  

Voted (7-0) 

 

New Business 

Actions Related to End of Year Budget Transfers for FY2020 

1) Review of Budget Transfers to Capital Reserve Fund 

Finance Director Jeff Jylkka provided an overview of previously approved budget transfers 

totaling $304,589. The final transfers were made to the Capital Reserve Fund in accordance 

with directions in the budget resolution adopted in March 2020. It was noted that the details 

of the transfers would be reported to Council once completed. 

 

2) Consideration of Budget Transfers for FY2020 

The Board of Finance reviewed the proposed transfers at its meeting on October 19, 2020 

and recommended approval. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Markham, to approve the end of year 

budget transfers in the amount of $137,702 and authorize the Finance Director to make any 

additional transfers, up to $5,000 in the aggregate, that may be needed to close out the books 

for the 2019/2020 fiscal year and to report those additional transfers to the Board of Finance 

and Town Council.  Voted (7-0) 

 

Discussion and Action Regarding an Offer to Sell Property on Comstock Trail to the Town 

An offer was received from the owner of three properties on Comstock Trail.  The properties were 

purchased at auction but are not buildable due to conservation easements.  The item will be tabled 

to the next meeting when more information can be obtained. 

 

Town Manager Report 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the Town Manager’s Report, which will be included with the 

minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  

 

Appointments 

None 

 

Tax Refunds 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to approve tax refunds in the 

amount of $6,692.3.  Voted (7-0) 

 

 



Town Council Regular Meeting 3 10/27/2020 Minutes 

Public Remarks 

Mark McWilliams, owner of the three properties on Comstock Trail indicated he would be willing 

to donate the property to the Town. 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement  

None 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Philhower, seconded by Ms. Moore, to adjourn the meeting at 7:50pm.  

Voted (7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



 
Office of PARKS & RECREATION 

JEREMY HALL 
jhall@easthamptonct.gov 

   1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424 | 860.267.7300 tel | www.easthamptonct.gov 

Memorial Bench/Tree Program 

Purpose 

To provide a program and establish guidelines for the public to commemorate 
the loss of a friend or loved one in a Town park or recreation facility.  

Policy 

The Parks and Recreation Department provides the public with many seating 
and resting areas where they can view wildlife, natural resources, recreation 
programs and activities, or simply to rest and enjoy the outdoors.  Providing 
additional seating and resting areas through private donations benefits park 
users, reduces costs for the Town, and provides the public with opportunities 
to commemorate the loss of a friend or loved one through a lasting tribute.  For 
this reason, it is the policy of the Town of East Hampton and the Parks and 
Recreation Department to accept donations from the public for the installation 
of Memorial Benches or Trees in designated areas throughout the -parks 
system. 

Procedure 

Application Process 
Members of the public may submit a request for a Memorial Bench or Tree by 
completing and submitting a Parks Memorial Bench/Tree Application to the 
Parks and Recreation Department Director. 

Applicants may make a request for a specific park and/or a general area within 
a park.  Along with their application, the Parks and Recreation Staff and 
Advisory Board will evaluate location requests on a case by case basis to 
determine if the requested location is suitable for a Memorial Bench or Tree.  If 
the requested location is determined to not be suitable, Parks and Recreation 
Department Staff may suggest alternative appropriate locations. 

Parks and Recreation Department Staff will work with the applicant to select a 
final location, approve the plaque or signage wording, and confirm warranty 
information.  Applicant must concur in writing by signing the approval section 
of the application.  The Parks and Recreation Department reserves the right of 
full editorial control over content, appearance and wording on plaques and 
signs. 

Fees 
Applicants are responsible for the cost of the bench/tree, plaque, installation, 
and Location Fees. Pricing is subject to change. 

Agenda Item 7a



 

 

2 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.9601 tel    |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

The Location Fee structure of the Memorial Bench/Tree Program is based on 
the chosen location of the bench/tree as outlined below: 

a) Waterfront areas at Sears Park – Bench: $300, Tree: $50 
b) Activity Areas (ball fields, tennis courts, Trails, playgrounds) 

– Bench: $200, tree $25 
c) General Open Areas – Bench: $100, Tree: $25 

 

Other 
All benches/trees will be installed by the donor in coordination with the Parks 
and Recreation Department and maintenance of the bench/tree and any 
authorized plantings around the bench/tree will be the responsibility of the 
owner with some minor oversight by the Parks Maintenance staff twice yearly. 
  
Memorial Benches/Trees will remain in place for the duration of the 
structure’s/tree’s lifespan.  At the end of this period, the Parks and Recreation 
Department may at its own discretion replace or remove the bench/tree.  
 
The Town of East Hampton holds ultimate ownership over all Memorial 
Benches/Trees, and it is prohibited for applicants to decorate, personalize, or 
add adornment to any bench or tree.  Special maintenance requests for specific 
benches or trees will not be granted except in cases of safety concerns, or 
damage. 
 
If a Memorial Bench/Tree is vandalized or damaged, the Parks and Recreation 
Department will make every effort to repair the bench/tree within the limits of 
its available funding.  If the bench/tree cannot be repaired or replaced, and if 
the bench/tree is a hazard or is unsightly, the Parks and Recreation 
Department may remove the bench/tree in its sole discretion.   
 
Any Memorial Bench or Tree or other item installed without the approval of 
the Town may be removed at the expense of the party who installed the bench, 
tree or item.   
 
The Town of East Hampton reserves the right to relocate the bench/tree for 
safety, environmental, or land management reasons.  In the event that this 
occurs, the donor will be notified of the new location of the bench using 
information contained in the original application. 
  
 
 

 



 

 

3 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.9601 tel    |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

Town of East Hampton Parks and Recreation Memorial Tree & 
Bench Application  

 

Donor Name: __________________________________________ 

Donor Address: _________________________________________ 

City: ____________________________ State: _______ 
Zip:______Phone # _______________________  

Name of person honored by memorial: _________________________ 

Type of memorial: Tree: ____________ Bench: _____________ 

• Requested location dedicated for memorial: ___________________. 

• Preferred date and time of memorial installation _______________.  
• The total cost of the memorial including construction $___________.  
• Location Fee (identified on policy page) $________ 

 

The Town of East Hampton Parks and Recreation department realizes that no 
physical structure is eternal and that this gesture of a bench or tree has a 
limited life. The Parks and Recreation Department will maintain, honor and 
recognize the life expectancy for a normal tree based on species and 
conditions. At any time, the town may opt to remove any memorial, and not 
replace, if said memorial is unsound, dangerous or unusable. 

Donor Signature: ____________________________Date:__________ 

Town Park and Recreation Director Signature:___________Date:_______  

Location of memorial within dedicated park, trail or open space: _________ 
(Town Staff use only)  

Memorial Inscription to Read (must be 50 characters/letters or less over 5 
lines) 
______________________________________________________
______________________________________________________
______________________________________________________
______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________
______________________________________________________
______________________________________________________ 

 



 

 

4 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.9601 tel    |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

Please mail the completed application (above) to:  

Town of East Hampton Parks and Recreation Department 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton CT 06424 

Or by Email to: jhall@easthamptonct.gov 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 







Agenda Item 9e









Agenda Item 12




